
 
 

 
eastsussex.gov.uk 

COUNTY CONSULTATIVE COMMITTEE (GOVERNORS) 
 
WEDNESDAY, 19 MARCH 2025 
 
3.00 PM REMOTE MEETING VIA MICROSOFT TEAMS 
 
 
MEMBERSHIP  
 
 
ALSO INVITED  
 

Councillors Colin Belsey, Peter Pragnell, Alan Shuttleworth, Bob Standley and 
Chris Collier 
 
Denise Kong, Monica Whitehead, Monica Pell, John Murray, Clare Cornford, 
Charlotte Johnstone 
 
 

MINUTES  Charlotte Johnstone 
 
A G E N D A  
 
1.   Minutes of the previous meeting  (Pages 3 - 6) 

 
2.   Apologies for absence   

 
3.   Disclosure of Interests   

Disclosure by all Members present of personal interests in matters on the agenda, the 
nature of any interest and whether the Members regard the interest as prejudicial under 
the terms of the Code of Conduct.  
 

4.   Urgent items   
Notification of any items which the Chair considers urgent and proposes to take at the 
appropriate part of the agenda. Any members who wish to raise urgent items are asked, 
wherever possible, to notify the Chair before the start of the meeting. In so doing, they 
must state the special circumstances which they consider justify the matter being 
considered urgent. 
 

5.   Academies Update   

- John Murray Senior Manager: Leadership and Governance, Governor and 
Clerking Services. 

 
6.   Local Authority Governor Appointments and Governor Services Update (Pages 7 - 12) 

Charlotte Johnstone, Project Officer, Governor and Clerking Service. 
 

7.   ESGF Report/Verbal Update for Councillors to include (Pages 13 - 14) 

 The concept of ‘Belonging’ and governor engagement with this topic. 

 Special Educational Needs and High Needs Block Funding. 
 

8.   Any other items previously notified under agenda item 4   
 

 
 
PHILIP BAKER 
Deputy Chief Executive   
County Hall, St Anne’s Crescent 
LEWES BN7 1UE 11 March 2025 
 
 



 

 

Contact: Charlotte Johnstone (Project Officer– Governor and Clerking Service)  
Email: Charlotte.Johnstone@eastsussex.gov.uk  
 
 
 
NOTE: As part of the County Council’s drive to increase accessibility to its public meetings, this 
meeting will be broadcast live on its website and the record archived for future viewing. The 
broadcast/record is accessible at 
 www.eastsussex.gov.uk/yourcouncil/webcasts/default.htm 
 

http://www.eastsussex.gov.uk/yourcouncil/webcasts/default.htm


 

County Consultative Committee – Minutes  
 
Date: Wednesday 13th November 2024 15:00 
 
Meeting: County Consultative Committee comprising of Councillors’ and East Sussex 
Governors’ Forum (ESGF). 
 
Present: Councillor’s Bob Standley (Chair), Peter Pragnell, Chris Collier 
 
Members of the ESGF: Denise Kong 
 
ESCC Officers: Clare Cornford, John Murray, Charlotte Johnstone, Rosie O’Brien (Minutes)  
 

  

1  Minutes of the previous meeting  
Cllr Standley welcomed everyone to the meeting.  

 
The minutes of the previous meeting were approved with no further comments.  
  

 
2  Apologies for absence  

Apologies received by Councillor Belsey & Monica Pell.  
Apologies were accepted by committee members.  

 

 
3  Disclosure of interests  

 No interests declared.  
 

4  Urgent items  
No items raised.  
  

5  Academy Update  
Verbal update from JM.    

 
Since the last County Consultative Committee Meeting in July, two schools have 
confirmed that they will be joining a trust.  
Robertsbridge Community College will move into the Aquinas Trust.  
Ringmer Primary School will move into Durrington Multi Academy Trust (MAT).  
  
JM noted that the DfE are in the process of making changes to funding schemes for 
academy conversion and developing trust capacity. We are waiting for more 
information from the DfE about how they are reshaping this funding.  
 
Councillors asked if there was a timescale for this.  
JM confirmed there is no timescale at this time.  

 

 
6  LA Gov appointments and governor services update  

Verbal update from CJ.   
Since the last County Consultative Meeting in July, 13 Local Authority Governors 
were nominated for appointment. All of these were approved within their boards 
for a 4-year Term of Office. All of these were reapplications.  
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 1



 

The Governor and Clerking Service has observed the increasing number of 
complaints across East Sussex Schools. This has been discussed with Councillors in 
past meetings.   
Since the start of Term 1 of the 2024-25 academic year, the Governor and Clerking 
Service has provided support to 7 schools across East Sussex dealing with 
complaints. In the last 6 months the team has supported 20 schools dealing with 
complaints.  
The team has confirmed that their training offer is being refined to target as many 
people as possible across East Sussex Schools. It has been refined to include 
governors, clerks and senior leaders of schools.  
 
CJ confirmed that the team will be running SEND training and networking for 
governors again this academic year, with the first training sessions taking place in 
Term 2.  
 
The Governor and Clerking Service has planned termly topics for the year ahead 
that have been planned to align with the Excellence for All Vision when 
incorporated in the Training, Networking and Briefing sessions, as well as any 
communications with Governors and Clerks.  
This includes a new Attendance and Inclusion training session that ran in Term 1, 
and an upcoming forum on the topic of Belonging, which will be delivered by Barry 
Blakelock, Education Director at the Aquinas Trust.  
The team will be reaching out to governors for feedback following each of these 
sessions.  

 
Since the Committee last met in July 2024, there have been 40 new governor 
appointments in East Sussex Maintained Schools. In total, there were 190 new 
governors appointed in East Sussex Maintained Schools in the 2023-24 academic 
year.  

 
Since the start of September 2024, there have been 3 new clerk inductions provided 
to clerks at maintained schools.  
The Locum Clerking Service has also been used this term with East Sussex Locum 
Clerks supporting 7 meetings across 5 schools in Term 1.  
The second cohort of the ESCC Certified course for clerks, Excellence in Clerking, 
started in September 2024. This programme is supporting clerks, predominantly at 
the start of their clerking career. The team has received positive feedback since 
the first session.  
 
DK asked if the team had an exact number or percentage of the governor vacancies 
in maintained schools.  
CJ confirmed it is difficult to determine exact numbers as the team is dependent 
on each school updating their vacancy information on the database used.  
CC added that trends can be provided rather than percentage data  

 

 
7  ESGF Verbal update for councillors.    

  
Verbal update provided by DK on behalf of the ESGF.  

Page 4



 

DK confirmed that governors understand the worries around budgeting in the 
current climate. Governors are currently wondering what protection there would be 
for current services specifically around governance and schools.  
Governors understand the value of the volunteer force and think that the volunteer 
force is only as strong as Governor Services who are there to support and bolster 
school governors.  
ESGF members have attended National Governance Association Networking sessions 
and have compared East Sussex to other Local Authorities. ESGF members 
confirmed that ESCC has some of the strongest governance in the country compared 
to other Local Authorities. This was down to the support provided by Governor 
Services.  

 
Cllr Standley confirmed that there are no current plans to change anything within 
Governor Services and that this is not an area currently being looked at for cuts.  
With a caveat that future circumstances are still unknown as there are significant 
challenges going forward with the current budget.  
 
DK highlighted that there is now a selection of ESGF members attending networking 
sessions to give other governors the opportunity to ask questions and seek advice,  
There was recently a networking focused on the governance of federations.  
The ESGF have been asking governors what they would like to be actioned. An 
example of this included a Lewes Governor Networking that took place which had a 
focus on school food and resulted in multiple meetings with Chartwells. This also 
resulted in workshops and programmes being attended on reducing food waste. This 
showed the positivity and value brought by governors working together.  
 
Cllr Standley agreed that it is important for governors to network with one another. 
 
DK highlighted the importance of the Equalities Networking provided by Governor 
Services and how it has resulted in the ESGF trying to determine how schools can be 
encouraged to monitor their policies in this area.  It is important to promote core 
offers such as Excellence for All with school governors, to weave those strands into 
networking with governors to ensure consistent messages.  
 
Cllr Standley expressed that the value of governors is essential to the performance 
of schools and is core to East Sussex Schools.  

 

 
8  AOI under item 4  

  
No items raised.  

9  Next meeting:  
 
The date of the next meeting is Wednesday 19th March 2025 15:00  

 
10    

  

 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 6 

Report to: County Consultative Committee 
 

Date of meeting: 
 

19th March 2025 

By: Charlotte Johnstone 

Title: Local Authority Governor appointments and Governor and Clerking 
Service Update for Councillors 

Purpose: To update Councillors on the nomination for appointment of local 
authority governors and governor training 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

1) For information 

1 Background 

1.1 The local authority has a statutory duty to approve nominations for local authority 

governors. Once nominated, schools then appoint local authority governors onto their governing 

board.   

1.2  This report provides a summary of local authority governor applications approved for 

nomination, and information about the level of governor vacancies across the county.   

2 Supporting information 

2.1  Since the report sent to Councillors on the 13th November 2024, 5 local authority 
governors were nominated for appointment, all were approved for a 4 year term of office. These 
were formed of 4 reapplications and 1 new application. 

 

Lindsay Pamphilon  Wadhurst CE Primary School Reapplication  

Jennifer Gritten  Danehill CE Primary School  Reapplication  

Kevin Millington  Stonegate CE Primary School Reapplication 

Chris Russell-Vick  Chailey Heritage  New Application 

Kieran Dray Netherfield CE Primary School Reapplication 

 

2.2 When the County Consultative Committee last met, the Governor and Clerking 
Service discussed that we were in the beginning stages of developing training for East 
Sussex Headteachers, Governors and Clerks on the Governor Disciplinary Committee 
process, which takes place when a child has been excluded, or suspended from the school. 
The intention of the training was to impart knowledge of the GDC process, so that all parties 
understood what their remit was within the process.  We have now delivered all three of the 
aforementioned information sessions to Headteachers, Governors and Clerks, and received 
feedback following these sessions. Some of the feedback included: 

 “It was a useful course. I would hope to never need the training that I received, but I 
definitely feel more informed now”. – East Sussex Headteacher. 

 “I found the session very informative and it was useful to have the opportunity to 
discuss specific scenarios and what questions we might want to ask.” – East Sussex 
Governor. 

 “This was a comprehensive information session; the slide deck is a very useful 
resource. Presenters were clearly knowledgeable on the subject area and able to 
provide specific guidance on the areas under discussion.” – East Sussex Clerk to 
Governors. 

Page 7

Agenda Item 6



 ““It was all very informative and the best training I have been on in a long time.” – 
East Sussex Governor. 

We intend to deliver another round of these sessions in the Spring. 

Additionally, due to the positive feedback following our GDC Information Sessions, we are 
at the initial stages of developing a new Complaints Information Session for Headteachers, 
which will be similar in its format to the aforementioned training. We intend to make this 
training focused solely on the Complaints process, including the required stages to and 
how to follow these, as well as the Headteacher’s role at each of these stages. 

 

2.3 The topics of Belonging and Inclusion have been at the forefront of the Governor and 
Clerking Services’ networking programme this academic year, and we aim to keep 
Belonging as a golden thread until Summer. In collaboration with the East Sussex 
Governors Forum (ESGF), in November ’24, we ran a Governor Forum on the topic of 
‘Belonging’. The forum was split into a presentation from Barry Blakelock, Education 
Director at AQUINAS Trust, and then the ESGF facilitated networking for governors to 
discuss any questions and how they might be able to practically engage with this topic in 
their schools. 64 governors across 36 East Sussex schools attended the forums (see 
Appendix 1). Some of the feedback from the forums included: 

 “The best session I've attended in many years. Good presenter but also well 
managed and facilitated by Clare and Denise [Governor Services and ESGF].” 

 “Absolutely inspiring and great” 

 “Very happy, thank you for running the course. As someone who has worked in a 
school, I think members of staff aspire to achieve this, it was good to bring out the 
benefit of teaching others in this way.” 

94% of responding governors were interested in attending a follow up networking on the 
topic of ‘Belonging’. 

In January this year, the ESGF ran a whole-governor networking session called ‘Continuing 
the Conversation on Belonging’. This session went further into the practical elements of the 
topic, utilising case studies from schools across East Sussex who are doing work on 
belonging. In attendance were 20 governors across 19 schools (see Appendix 2). Feedback 
from this networking session indicated that the governors would like to continue the 
conversation around Belonging, especially when looking at vulnerable pupils, e.g. pupils 
with SEN, pupils accessing Pupil Premium, or pupils who have English as an Additional 
Language (EAL). 

The Governor and Clerking Service are currently planning the topics for the remaining terms 
of the year, which will include Transition between settings, Relationships on the Governing 
Board inc. effective governance, as well as preparing for results at the end of the year. We 
will also shortly begin the initial stages of planning the 2025-2026 academic year training, 
networking and briefing programme. 

 

2.4 Since the County Consultative Committee last met in November 2024, there have 
been 52 new governor appointments in maintained schools. This is a 30% increase from 
the 40 new governors who had joined boards as reported in the previous 4-month gap 
between the meeting of the County Consultative Committee. Due to the way that tenure 
dates work on governing boards, and the rapid change that can sometimes occur in board 
membership it is not possible for us to determine how many governors have left their role. 
However, where schools have particular issues with retention our service is able to support with 
bespoke recruitment. 

 

2.5 Clerking: Since the County Consultative Committee last met in November 2024, there 
have been 3 new clerk inductions provided to maintained schools. This ensures that new clerks 
are aware of the basic expectations of their role, the key tasks they need to complete and the 
training available to support their knowledge and development. The Governor and Clerking 
Service also offers support to schools who are recruiting for a Clerk to Governors. 

Page 8



The Locum Clerk Service has also been a beneficial service this term, with our locum clerks 
supporting 8 meetings across 4 schools since the County Consultative Committee last met in 
November 2024. 

We have just completed the second delivery of our ESCC certified course for Clerks, the 
Excellence in Clerking Programme. The clerks on this cohort have been extremely 
supportive of one another and have been utilising the benefits of networking and seeking 
practical support from one another. We are proud of this group of clerks and how they 
have engaged so meaningfully with the programme and have shown clear positive 
development in their role. The next cohort will begin in April 2025. 

 

Charlotte Johnstone 
Project Officer 

Contact Officer: Charlotte Johnstone 
Email: Charlotte.Johnstone@eastsussex.gov.uk   

  

Page 9

mailto:Charlotte.Johnstone@eastsussex.gov.uk


 

Appendix 1 – GCS Governor Forum ‘Belonging’ Attendees. November 2024. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Governing Board Attendees 

All Saints Church of England Primary School, Bexhill 

Ashdown Primary School 

Beacon Academy 

Bourne Primary School 

Chyngton School 

Claverham Community College 

Cross-in-Hand Church of England Primary School 

Crowhurst CofE Primary School 

Guestling Bradshaw Church of England Primary School 

Icklesham Church of England Primary School 

King's Academy Ringmer 

Maynards Green Community Primary School 

Meridian Community Primary School 

Polegate Primary School 

Priory School 

Ringmer Primary School 

Roselands & Stafford Federation 

Seaford Learning Trust 

Seahaven Academy 

South Malling CofE Primary and Nursery School 

St Mark's Church of England Primary School 

Stone Cross School 

Stonegate Church of England Primary School 

Sussex Spires Federation 

The Bluebell Federation 

The Genesis Federation 

The Oak Tree Federation 

Uckfield College 

Uplands Academy 

Wallands Community Primary School 

West Rise Junior School 

Western Road Community Primary School 

Willingdon Primary School 

Wivelsfield Primary School 

Woodlands Federation 

Seaford Primary 

Page 10



 

Appendix 2 - GCS ESGF Governor Networking ‘Continuing the Conversation on Belonging’ 

Attendees. January 2025. 

 
Governing Board 

Chyngton School 

Seaford Head School 

Seaford Learning Trust 

Claverham Community College 

Cross-in-Hand Church of England Primary School 

Heathfield Community College 

Maynards Green Community Primary School 

Meridian Community Primary School 

Priory School 

Seahaven Academy 

St Mark's Church of England Primary School 

St Mary Star of the Sea Catholic Primary School 

St Thomas a Becket Church of England Federation 

Sussex Spires Federation 

The Rampion Federation 

Woodlands Federation 

Ticehurst and Flimwell Church of England Primary School 

Wadhurst CofE Primary School 

Wallands Community Primary School 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



Report to councillors from the East Sussex Governor Forum 
Author: Denise Kong, Chair of the ESGF 

Date Mar 7 2025 

 

 

 

In the last few months, the ESGF has seen a couple of themes developing. 

 

To put things into context, the ESGF has attended its second National Governor Association 

meeting. Although there is one thing ESCC does have in common with other authorities, which is 

the fragmentation of the governance landscape due to the wish of many academy chains to provide 

their own governor support, we can see that in other areas, our situation at East Sussex is much 

better than that of other local authorities. We can rely on the East Sussex Governor and Clerking 

Service to provide an administrative framework, prompting us with ideas and timings; we can reach 

a large section of East Sussex governors by default, without having to ask individuals to opt in; 

GCS and ESGF have a good relationship; and as governors, we are able to contribute meaningfully 

to the strategic aims of the GCS. 

 

Governors have attended sessions on the themes of Belonging and on Special Educational Needs, 

and the support for new governors continues, with a regular turnover of new faces, supported by 

what has become a regular section of the ESGF. 

 

Belonging 

The concept of Belonging has been developing nationally and is gaining traction in East Sussex 

Governors had a presentation from a school that has had success adding this to their vision and 

ethos. The presentation summed up Belonging as “feeling like an accepted, valued and legitimate 

group member.” 

The presentation was well received. One of the benefits of increasing the feeling of belonging can 

often be improved attendance, but there are other benefits as well. 

Governors networked in a follow up session and this session addressed some of the feedback 

questions that governors posed at the first session, around examples of what schools could look at 

doing, and what worked well. The ESGF gathered a few examples of these, and the extra session 

helped to increase awareness among schools who had not been able to attend the first presentation. 

It could be seen from concrete examples in schools that Belonging is an important positive force 

that is worth pursuing. 

 

Special Educational Needs 

Governors at the Chairs’ network had a presentation from Nicola Angus of ESCC’s Education 

Division. They continued this discussion in the following term’s session, around the question of the 

transfer of funds from mainstream schools into the high needs block. Some schools have responded 

by writing to protest. Many schools have been puzzled regarding the reasoning behind the amounts 

that have been asked for, although this has been subsequently clarified following a direct query to 

the SEN department by one of the ESGF. 

The good news is that ESCC and governors and schools are still able to have positive conversations 

around the topic. We are all aware that the question of SEN funding is very difficult, with high 

expectations from parents, and the situation of having private providers in the county. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 13

Agenda Item 7



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Minutes of the previous meeting
	6 Local Authority Governor Appointments and Governor Services Update
	7 ESGF Report/Verbal Update for Councillors to include

